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Lamps and Windshields as Accessories: On most American tiller-steered cars before 1905,
the lamps did not come with the car, and windshields as such were still unknown. However,
every owner wanted some sort of lamp in case he (or she) was caught out after dark. Kerosene
lanterns with bails to carry them also had side brackets to fit on the side of the car, usually
alongside the main seat. Lamps like this were self-contained utilizing a wick to carry oil,
usually kerosene, from the well of the lamp at the bottom to the adjustable vertical element
where the flame burned in front of a reflector. A dim light shone ahead, but barely enough to
light the way.

With the coming of hoods in front of the driver’s seat, on Stanley cars during the 1905 model
year, while lamps were still not included, it was assumed that most owners who could afford a
car wanted at least two kerosene lamps to light the way, and maybe even a similar tail light
which would feature a red lens facing toward the rear. Catalog prints of the cars being offered
sometimes showed the models with no lamps, and sometimes with two kerosene lanterns
mounted toward the front of the hood. It was not long, however, before night driving became
popular (or necessary), and carbide lamps with larger reflectors and lenses offered a much
brighter view of the road ahead. Such lamps, two in number, were mounted at the front of the
frame inside the front fenders, but required an outside source to fuel them, namely a carbide
generator mounted on the running board. Water dripping on a carbide cake made the gas which
was delivered to the lamps by tiny tubing, brass and rubber. While this was satisfactory, it was
cumbersome, and small Prestolite tanks, where acetylene gas could be stored safely under
pressure, immediately gained favor, and the preferred system was to carry a rechargeable
Prestolite tank on the running board with a valve to open, close and adjust the amount of gas
going forward to the lamps. Acetylene gas worked equally as well as carbide gas. The gas
would be turned on at the tank, the lamps lit with a match, and the gas valve adjusted to the
proper brightness or height of the flame. If the gas was turned up too high, the lamps would
roar and the heat would soon crack the reflectors. By 1908 on larger cars and by 1910 or 1911
on most all cars, owners wanted acetylene headlights while retaining kerosene side lamps and a
kerosene tail light.

On May 29 and 30, 1910, my father and his second cousin, Paul Way, were at the Stanley
factory to take delivery of a new 10-H.P. Model 61, ordered by the latter, and the two of them
planned to drive it over the road to Yorklyn or Kennett Square (home of Way) to save the
freight. The 29" was a Sunday and the 30" was Memorial Day. No one was around the factory
on Sunday until F. E. Stanley appeared in a red 10-H.P. Stanley and asked what he could do for
the strangers. They told him they hoped to get the new car the following morning and start for
home. He reminded them that the next day was a holiday, but said if they would be there at
7:00 A.M., he would make sure the car was ready. He asked what lamps they wanted with the
car. From a later picture showing Paul Way and his family on a trip, we know he not only had
five lamps, but a windshield as well. Possibly it was installed at the factory; possibly later. F.
E. said to the boys: “New York is 242 miles, and I drive it in 6-1/2 hours”. Paul Way enjoyed



his steamer, but he died in 1928 at the age of 48. His brother, Frank, also owned one or two
Stanleys, as did Frank’s son, Robert, in the collecting years (approximately 1954 to 1990).

The bails were discontinued on side lamps about 1908. There were many makes of brass lamps,
some of which were nickel-plated and even painted over. A few, but not all, the famous ones
were Solar, Dietz, Gray & Davis, Edmunds & Jones, and Neverout. Lamps, windshields and
speedometers became standard equipment on 20 and 30-H.P. Stanley cars in 1912, and on all
Stanleys in 1913. By 1915, there was no more gas; all lamps were electric, and Stanleys had 6-
volt generators and storage batteries.

Separation Day in Old New Castle is this coming Saturday, June 14 (it was reported incorrectly
last week to be June 7), and Rose Ann Hoover, Emil Christofano, Art Sybell, Jerry Novak, and
Geoge Barczewski plan to take our *32 Packard and our Rauch & Lang electric, the latter on
George’s trailer. Bruce Wilhelm’s Gas Engine and Tractor Show on Route 7, just four miles
from Auburn Heights, is on Saturday and Sunday, June 14 and 15, and Fatherfest at the
Helicopter Museum near West Chester is on Sunday, the 15%. 1 am unsure about the New
Garden Air Show this year, but if it is to take place, it should be on Sunday, the 15". We have
often had some of our cars attend all of these events, and those qualified are encouraged to go
again this year.

Next Sunday, June 15, seven of our members, four of whom are qualified Stanley operators,
expect to travel from Yorklyn to Bennington, Vermont, home of the Kirkpatrick family
(operators of this year’s tour), to take part in the annual Eastern Steam Car Tour, hosted last
year by the Friends of Auburn Heights Preserve. Steve and Ann Bryce, Bill and Cathy
Schwoebel, Butch and Jane Cannard (his mother), and Kelly Williams plan to take our Stanley
Models 87, 76, and 607 in three closed trailers. In addition to Bill Schwoebel’s and mine, we
thank Bob Wilhelm for the use of his trailer, making it possible for us to take 3 cars. This week
those attending and others who want to help will be putting the final touches on the cars going,
assembling spare parts and tools, and possibly getting a few more articles together for
consignment to the Stanley Museum’s Auction in August. The cars will be loaded on Friday or
Saturday. Keep cool while the Phillies are hot! Tom



